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  [9.31 am] 

 

SJH:   Good morning.  There is just one matter we need to raise with the 

Council and the Crown and it is a concern was expressed with the 

Secretariat relating to subdivision being heard immediately after 5 

residential with the suggestion it would also apply to commercial and 

industrial and should be heard after all three of those chapters. 

 

 The first thing is, if that is to be so, we will need a formal application 

for the Secretariat to the Panel, which will need to be served on all 10 

parties because the subdivision piece does not affect a vast number of 

the submitters on residential, but the consequences of the suggestion 

from the Council and the Crown is they will have to sit around waiting 

until the other chapters are heard to get their decisions.  Because we are 

loathe to enter into the difficulties of issuing part decisions for fairly 15 

obvious reasons, the problem created by the Council determining to do 

part chapters is now so self-evident we do not need to mention it any 

longer. 

 

 So do you wish to respond at all this morning before we go on to 20 

industrial or will you file a formal application? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Sir, I am happy to respond now if that would assist the Panel.  

Just to set the scene, sir, the subdivision chapter, it composes a mixture 

of general and district-wide provisions.  Of the 66 pages in that chapter 25 

about half of those are zone specific provisions.   

 

 And in terms of Monday afternoon’s prehearing meeting on the 

subdivision chapter and scheduling of that hearing, our understanding 

with discussions with the Secretariat prior to that was that the 30 

subdivision chapter would come last and that was the basis of our 

briefings from the Council. 

 

SJH:   Well, it was never raised by Mr Winchester at the hearing. 

 35 

MS SCOTT:   And I apologise and our client had not anticipated that the 

subdivision proposal would be brought forward and therefore had not 

briefed us on the rationale of having the subdivision chapter heard after 

the industrial and commercial proposals as well as the residential. 

 40 

SJH:   That does not really answer the concern I have raised, that a whole lot of 

submitters are going to sit around waiting? 

 

MS SCOTT:   No, it does not, sir. 

 45 
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SJH:   And it gets back to the part chapter fiasco again really but anyway.  I 

think you need to file a formal setting out the grounds and setting how 

you would propose to deal with the prejudice to those submitters. 

 

MS SCOTT:   We can do that, sir.  Can I just add, in terms of the suggestion it 5 

was also related to we became aware that the Hearings Panel is seeking 

to sit as a full Panel for the industrial and commercial proposals? 

 

SJH:   Well, we were not intending to but because of other matters it is 

probably likely we will now do so.  To get through we need to split into 10 

two Panels but we need another couple of alternate Panel members to 

make that work and we are still waiting for that to happen. 

 

  [9.35 am] 

 15 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir.  And we were also advised by CERA on behalf of 

NZTA yesterday about the timing of a significant hearing on roading - - 

- 

 

SJH:   Who is that hearing in front of?  Perhaps if the Crown could answer. 20 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, and just to explain that one, there are - - - 

 

SJH:   Who is the hearing in front of? 

 25 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir.  The hearing will be in front of the 

Christchurch City Council, sir. 

 

SJH:   Well, we are Ministerially appointed, we are like a Board of Inquiry, (a) 

we would take precedence and (b) we expect the NZTA to measure up.  30 

I think it has been overtaken by events anyway. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   As we will come to when we get to transport but we have got tight time 35 

limits, you know that, you are just going to have to cooperate when 

these things happen. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   We will do our best, sir. 

 40 

SJH:   Well, it will not be a matter of doing your best, it will be a matter of 

doing it, okay? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 45 
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SJH:   Thank you.  All right, well, we will come to industrial.  Just to explain to 

any of the lay submitters who have not been here previously the 

purpose of this is to really set out the hearing procedures to determine 

the dates for the hearing and to deal with any other matters including 

expert conferencing, mediation, the ability to combine cases and 5 

limitations of time.   

 

 Before we start, having now gone through the matters raised with the 

Secretariat, it seems to us we will need to further limit the time for 

giving evidence and possibly cross-examination as well.  So, Ms Scott, 10 

scope of hearing? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sir.  The scope of the industrial hearing is all things 

industrial in chapter 16 as well as the definitions that are referred to 

therein.   15 

 

 It might be timely to raise a matter with you, sir, about the possibility 

of hearing the industrial and commercial chapters together as one.  We 

have had discussions with the Crown on this matter.  I would just like 

to take you through the reasons why that could be a good option.  The 20 

joint hearing of the commercial and industrial proposals provides an 

opportunity to evaluate the proposed framework for managing business 

activities in employment nodes across the city.   

 

 I guess there is four key reasons.  The policy approach in the two 25 

chapters is interrelated.  The submissions on – well, a number of the 

submissions on the two chapters are interrelated.  A number of 

submitters are seeking an industrial zoning to be much more than just 

industrial and that is in terms of retail and office caps. (ph 2.54)  There 

is a very obvious overlap in the definitions used in the two chapters 30 

and, finally, in terms of the overlap in witnesses and therefore possibly 

saving some hearing time. 

 

SJH:   So I take it, from what has been said to the Secretariat, that most of the 

Council and Crown’s experts will be common to both hearings? 35 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, that is correct, sir.  The Council has five witnesses that 

overlap between the two and then just another two different ones. 

 

SJH:   All right, and how many does the Crown have overlapping? 40 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, it is six.  So it will be six witnesses in industrial that 

will be also called for the commercial proposal with an additional 

possibly three for commercial. 

 45 
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SJH:   All right, well, it seems eminently sensible but we will hear from other 

submitters in relation to that.  So subject to you getting a conditional 

tick at the moment we will hear you on scope now. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Okay.  If that was the case then chapter 15 and chapter 16 would 5 

be within the scope.  Would you like me to talk you through now, sir, 

the key issues that we have identified or would you like to hear from 

the parties? 

 

SJH:   No, I think it would be useful to us if you did that now. 10 

 

MS SCOTT:   There are five kind of key high level issues.  These can 

obviously be broken into more definite groups below but - - - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Is this just for industrial, Ms Scott? 15 

 

MS SCOTT:   This is just for industrial, I can talk to commercial as well 

because they do overlap.  Provision for office retail activity and other 

non-industrial activities in the industrial zones.  The level of amenity 

sought through standards in the industrial zones.  Support for 20 

redevelopment of brownfield sites for commercial and residential 

activities.   

 

 There are a number of site specific matters and these are submitters 

seeking amendments to provisions in the notified plans essentially for 25 

subzones, sir. 

 

  [9.40 am] 

 

 An example of that is Waterloo Business and then there are also site 30 

specific re-zonings. So these are submitters that are seeking a rezoning 

to industrial or a change to an industrial zoning that might apply for a 

wider range of activities.  And just an example of that is some land on 

Moorhouse Avenue which is a submission by Elmwood Storage and 

they are seeking recognition as an office park and it is notified as 35 

industrial general. 

 

 In terms of commercial, the issues, Sir.  The first is the hierarchy and 

sitting within that is whether the relationship between the central city 

and KACs is complementary or competitive.  How primacy is given to 40 

the central city and that relates to both the commercial and industrial 

zones.  And whether primacy is given to key activity centres ahead of 

neighbourhood centres. 

 

 A slightly different issue but, to an extent interrelated, as a centres-45 

based approach in the commercial chapter and some examples of sub-
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issues. Some submitters are seeking a more balanced approach as per 

variation 86 and you have already heard some discussion about that, 

Sir.  And also are seeking a strict adherence to a centres-based 

approach.  Others – some submitters are supporting that, some 

submitters are opposing. 5 

 

 Other submitters. Another theme is a more explicit recognition sought 

and positive contribution of commercial activity.   

 

 And finally that the plan is not enabling enough in providing for 10 

upward expansion. 

 

 Two more issues are ERMA (ph 2.19) design and other development 

standards.  And finally there is a number of site-specific zoning or re-

zonings are sought within this chapter.  And I suspect you will hear 15 

from the submitters on those this morning. 

 

SJH: Thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  I have just got a couple of questions on that, Ms Scott.  20 

Just going back to industrial.  I wonder whether is there another issue 

which is sort of at the beginning of the other issues and that concerns 

the design of the zones. Just so that the Panel understands the various 

subcategories of zoning, within which presumably there is a design 

zoning approach across the city, and objectives and policies that relate 25 

to that.  Would that be something that you address the Panel on at an 

early stage? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir.  The Council certainly would.  And also Thursday is 

the overlap between the two chapters in explaining the different 30 

purposes of the various - - - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So if we look at commercial and there is a clear design in 

regard to for instance for the centres-based approach. 

 35 

MS SCOTT:   Yes. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And just looking at the same pattern of issue for industrial 

would that be effectively – there is a wider scheme of approach within 

which you have got the particular zones? 40 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, that is correct.  Thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you. 

 45 
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SJH:   All right, thank you.  Does the Crown accept that scope or has it got 

additional matters? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, yes it accepts that scope.  I think within those 

various categories there are iterations of that but I think they are 5 

covered by if you like what is covered by my friend. 

 

SJH:   All right.  Well we will go through counsel now.  If they just announce 

who they are appearing for, for the record and the transcript.  And if 

they then add in any issues they may have on scope.  So starting at that 10 

end with Ms Buckley. 

 

MS BUCKLEY:   Ms Buckley appearing for Annex Developments, Tait 

Limited, Milbrook Trustees, Jareth Holdings and (INDISTINCT 4.35), 

sir. 15 

 

SJH: Yes, do you have any issues on scope? 

 

MS BUCKLEY:   No sir. 

 20 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Everleigh. 

 

MS EVERLEIGH:   Yes sir.  I appear for Kennaway Park, Orchard Trust, 

Hornby Consortium and Memorial Avenue Investments.  No comments 

regarding scope. 25 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Davidson. 

 

MS DAVIDSON:   I appear for Lowe Corp, Silverfern Farms and Elmwood 

Storage.  No issues with scope, sir. 30 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Cleary. 

 

  [9.45 am] 

 35 

MR CLEARY:   Sir, I appear for Goodman Property Trust and also for Warren 

Stirling and Marion Power.  No issues, as discussed. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. Mr Hardy. 

 40 

MR HARDY:   No issues, Sir. Five Blend Holdings Limited and Foxton 

Properties Limited submission 819. 

 

SJH:   Now is that your client beside you? 

 45 
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MR EDWARDS:   No. I am just sitting here so I can hear a wee bit better.  I 

am Ray Edwards from Urbis.  I am representing Commercial Vehicle 

Centre submitter 961. 

 

SJH: Do you have any issue on scope? 5 

 

MR EDWARDS:   No issue on scope. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Walsh? 

 10 

MS WALSH:   No issues, Sir. Ngai Tahu Property Limited and Te Runanga O 

Ngai Tahu. 

 

MR SCHULTE:   Mr Schulte appearing for Addington Raceway Limited and 

we have no issues to the scope as well. 15 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Dixon? 

 

MS DIXON:   Ms Dixon for Rockgas Limited, Sir.  No issues as to scope. 

 20 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Rogers? 

 

MS ROBERTS:   Ms Roberts appearing for South Island Foodstuffs Property.  

 

SJH:   Oh, Roberts is it? 25 

 

MS ROBERTS:   Roberts.  Yes.  And there is no issue as to scope.  Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Mr Millar. 

 30 

MR MILLAR:   Darryl Millar, not legal counsel, sir, but I appreciate the 

compliment.  Appearing for Orion New Zealand. 

 

SJH:   Others would not see it that way necessarily. 

 35 

MR MILLAR:   And Christchurch Polytech Institute of Technology.  No issues 

on scope, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Kumar? 

 40 

MS KUMAR:   Good morning, sir, I am here on behalf of Melanesian Mission 

Trust Board, Tegel Foods Limited and Belfast Estate Limited.  No 

issues on scope.  Thank you. 

 

SJH: Thank you.  Ms Nichols? 45 
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MS NICOL:   Ms Nicol for Christchurch International Airport Limited, 

Lyttelton Port Company, Gelita and Waterloo Park, unless there is 

someone else here representing them.  But no issues on scope, sir. 

 

SJH:   Ms Semple? 5 

 

MS SEMPLE:   Yes, no issues as to scope for.  I am here for Fletcher Building 

and Marriner No. 1. 

 

SJH:   And no scope issues? 10 

 

MS SEMPLE:   No scope issues, sir. 

 

SJH:   Ms Mehlhopt, you are ECAN? 

 15 

MS MEHLHOPT:   Yes, the Regional Council, sir, and no issues as to scope. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  And then we have the friend of the submitter, who we will 

come back to.  We will just go through everybody at the back.  Who, if 

they just identify if they are here as a submitter or representing a 20 

submitter and whether they have any scope issues.  Starting with you 

Mr Horgan, who I declare an interest that I know you. 

 

MR HORGAN:   Greg Horgan, representing myself, M61 Limited and the 

Crone Family Trust, property owners in Mandeville Street. 25 

 

SJH: No issue on the scope of the hearing? 

 

MR HOGAN:   Not that I am aware of, sir. 

 30 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS COMFORT:   Julie Comfort, representing Chas S Luney Limited, 984, 

New Zealand Metropolitan Properties, 557, and Kelly Properties 

Limited, 615. And no scope issues, sir. 35 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR WALLIE:   John Wallie, New Zealand Manufacturers and Exporters 

Association.  We are a submitter and we have no issues on scope. 40 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS STEWART:   Liz Stewart from Aston Consultants representing the 

Radford Family, submission number 660, and further submission 1345.  45 
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Also representing Kirsty Inwood, further submission 1449, and Ray 

Wood, further submission 1344.  No issues on scope.  

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 5 

MS BLAIR:   Karen Blair representing BP Oil New Zealand Limited, Mobil 

Oil New Zealand Limited and Z Energy Limited.  Submitter 723 and 

further submitter 1295, and also Z Energy submitter 597.  

 

SJH:   Thank you. 10 

 

MS DOVIE:   I am Janette Dovey from Bellbird Consulting Group, a planning 

consultancy.  I am representing further submitter 1477, Long Insulation 

Fabricators Limited. 

 15 

SJH:   Any issue on scope? 

 

MS DOVIE:   No, no issues on scope.  

 

MR CLEASE:   Jonathan Clease, Planner.  I am here for Liquigas, Higgins, 20 

Kiwi Property Trust, Bunnings and P & K Hodge.  And no issue on 

scope.  

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 25 

Ms McLEOD:   Ainsley McLeod here for Transpower New Zealand Limited, 

832.  No issues on scope.  

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 30 

MR JORDAN:   Christian Jordan, submitter 1098.  No issues on scope.  

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR PHILLIPS:   Jeremy Phillips for Centre New Zealand Limited, 742.  No 35 

issues on scope.  

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Now there are two people over here.   

 

MR HADLEY:   Simon Hadley, Smith Crane and Construction submitter.  No 40 

issues on scope.  

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS ELLIS:   Jane Ellis, D & J Ellis Trust, Earth Sea Sky and Bernard Street.  45 

No issues on scope.  



 Page 10 

  

Ch16: Industrial (PHC) 18.02.15 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

  [09.45 am] 

 5 

MR THOMPSON:   I am Bruce Thompson, a planner here with Mr Hardy for 

Five (INDISTINCT 0.13) Holdings.  No issues on scope.  

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 10 

MR WEAVER:   Mark Weaver here for Calder Stewart Industries Limited, 

submissions 985 and 741.  No issues on scope.  

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Well we have very little in the way of lay submitters, if I 

can put it that way, today, but the friend of the submitter is here, if you 15 

would stand up and if you need any assistance do approach the friend 

of the submitter at the end of the hearing.  He can give you advice as to 

the filing of documents, the form of those documents.  He cannot tell 

you what to put in them – that is not his role – but he can advise you 

how to set it out and how and how the hearings will be undertaken and 20 

how you best to address us when we come to the hearing.  Thank you. 

 

 Are there any other procedural matters arising from this that anyone 

has? 

 25 

MS WALSH:   Sir, we have an issue which relates to, we will be making an 

application on behalf of Te Runanga to present some closed evidence at 

the industrial hearing.  We have mentioned it to the secretary and we 

will make a full application for that, but just signalling that that will be 

coming to you and the reasons why it will be set out in there.  30 

 

SJH:   Thank you for that.  I take it there are no other procedural issues?  

Thank you.  We come to hearing procedures, just to give you an 

indication, following that approach, we intend that this will follow 

residential.  We will need time after residential, of course, to write and 35 

read, but combining them, we are looking at a hearing time, starting on 

11 May and running through to 5 June.  I think I will hear from counsel 

of the Crown, in particular, but it does seem that with sufficient lead in 

time that we will be able to maybe grab back an extra week in terms of 

filing of the evidence. So on residential on Monday, we had three 40 

weeks, Ms Scott, four weeks before the hearing, in the circumstances?  

Have we got three months? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Sir, I think the Council is happy with that and what that also 

means is the possibility of more time for mediations after the evidence 45 
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is filed, which obviously will assist the Panel in terms of, hopefully, 

some matters being settled and not having to come to hearing. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Ms Scott, is the Council looking for a similar model on 

mediation to that which was discussed for the residential?  In other 5 

words, mediation with the assistance of experts available to the clients. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, there have been some areas identified where we see 

mediation will be valuable.  I can advise that there have been some 

discussions, and I am talking about both chapters here. There have not 10 

been any discussion with submitters to date on the industrial chapter, 

but there have been on the commercial chapter.  Some of these issues 

are inter-related and one obvious one is development and design 

standards, which will obviously have the same experts or witnesses 

involved.  But in terms of the timing, the Council would like to see the 15 

same process in terms of mediation and has, from experience, found 

that mediation after its evidence has been filed is of more value. 

 

 So, I think, sir, four weeks back would take us to Monday 13th. 

 20 

SJH:   Yes, thank you.  And then can I suggest, subject to any submissions we 

hear, that submitter evidence is ten working days after that.  Which 

would be, perhaps we should make it Friday 1 May for submitter 

evidence? 

 25 

MS SCOTT:   I think, sir, ten working days takes you to ANZAC Day, so 

perhaps the Friday? 

 

SJH:   Yes, which is Friday 24th for submitters evidence and rebuttal evidence 

from the Council or any other relevant rebuttal evidence from 30 

submitters by Friday 1 May.  And you would seek that we put in place 

a timetable for mediation following the filing of your evidence on 13 

April. 

 

  [9.55 am] 35 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, and that extra week I think is helpful in that it gives 

time for the submitters to consider evidence and come a little bit more 

informed to mediation. 

 40 

SJH:   All right, well, subject to anything anyone may say around mediation we 

will do that.  Has anyone got any additional matters around mediation?  

Are there any experts that should be expertly conferenced?  Scientists 

and such like which have been very useful in natural hazards or 

everybody falls in the category that Ms Appleyard spoke of on 45 
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Monday, that it is better that we mediate with the experts they are 

advising? 

 

MS SCOTT:   There is one area we have identified, sir, and that is the retail 

and economic experts, there could be some value in them possibly 5 

caucusing.  I think it possibly is too early to make that call but my 

understanding is that they will all largely know each other and that is 

something that they should be able to do quite easily. 

  

SJH:   Well, it is a small profession, yes. 10 

 

MS SCOTT:   And possibly without the assistance of the Secretariat as well. 

 

SJH:   Well, we better go through now and get an indication of the experts 

being called to see that there is sufficient number to warrant and if they 15 

can’t do it informally if there is only one or two of them.  So what 

experts are you calling for the Council? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Sir, so I will talk you through the industrial list first.  We have 

Ms Josie Schroeder, S-c-h-r-o-e-d-e-r, and that is urban design.  We 20 

have transport evidence, servicing, which is focused on wastewater and 

water supply, also a storm water expert, a retail expert, who is Mr Tim 

Heath and Mr Phil Osborne also for property economics.   

 

 In respect of the industrial chapter we have the same person for urban 25 

design. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Sorry, you said for the industrial - - - 

 

MS SCOTT:   Sorry, for commercial. 30 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Commercial. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Sorry, sir.  For commercial, urban design is one and the same. 

 35 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Ms Schroeder? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes.  Transport will be the same witness.  The servicing 

evidence will be by the same witness.  There will be storm water 

evidence. And then we also have Mr Heath and Mr Osborne.  There is 40 

one new topic there and that is open space. And I should add to both 

that there will be planning evidence. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  

 45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   So what sort of evidence would the Council call to 

underpin the performance standards in industrial for instance? 

 

MS SCOTT:   That is Ms Schroeder and also the planning evidence but, in the 

same vein as Monday morning, there is some work that has been 5 

underway in terms of looking at those chapters in light of the statement 

of expectations and there could be some value in a revised chapter 

being circulated to the parties at some stage which may assist with 

resolving some submitters’ concerns. 

 10 

SJH:   Well, it may pay to wait until after next Thursday when strategic 

directions is handed down as well.  It may give a steer. 

 

MS SCOTT:   It sounds sensible, (ph 3.34) sir. 

 15 

SJH:   Thank you.   And the Crown? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Thank you, sir.  For the industrial proposal the Crown’s 

six witnesses are as follows.  The first is Mr Marius Ogg, he presented 

evidence for the Crown in strategic directions.  He will be covering the 20 

industrial market essentially, sir. 

 

 The second witness will be covering urban design matters but again I 

take the signal from my learned friend, depending on what is issued by 

the Council covering urban design matters we might end up dropping 25 

that witness but for present purposes we will call one. 

 

 The third witness, sir, is a traffic expert.  The fourth and fifth witnesses, 

sir, are both with the New Zealand Fire Service, Mr Alan Merry, 

operational, and Ms Ainsley McLeod, planning.  And the last witness, 30 

sir, is a planner covering all industrial matters. 

 

 Sir, for the commercial proposal, the first six witnesses are the same as 

I have just mentioned for the industrial proposal but obviously with a 

commercial slant to it, sir. 35 

 

 The only two additional witnesses that we would be looking to call, sir, 

would be a witness covering the importance of the central city and also 

a witness covering community facilities but particularly from a 

Correction’s perspective, sir. 40 
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  [10.00 am] 

 

SJH:   I am sorry, just to go back, I take it the intention of both the Council and 

the Crown is that the common witnesses will give their industrial 

evidence, then the commercial evidence in one hit, they won’t be called 5 

twice? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   No.  My intention, sir, is to only give you eight 

statements of evidence, sir. 

 10 

SJH:   That is right. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.   15 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Ms Scott, just on the question of industrial market and 

Mr Ogg giving evidence for the Crown, would there be a counterpart 

(ph 0.34) for the Council in that area? 

 20 

MS SCOTT:   In terms of the market evidence it is really coming from the 

property economics, so Mr Ogg and Mr Osborne. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, thank you.  And I take it your evidence would be led 

through in the same way.  Industrial and commercial would be just led 25 

through from the Council at the beginning of the hearing and then 

issues can be picked up through the hearing? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Absolutely, sir.  It would start with the relationship between the 

two chapters and policy direction and we would certainly structure the 30 

evidence so it was presented in that fashion. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Buckley? 

 

MS BUCKLEY:   Thank you, sir.  Annex Development will be calling a 35 

planning expert.  Tait Limited will also be calling a planning expert.  

Lindsay North, also a planning expert.  Milnthorpe Trustees Limited 

will be calling a landscape architect and Jarras Holdings Limited will 

be calling a logistics expert and a planner.  Thank you, sir. 

 40 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Is there any intention to consolidate the planning 

evidence? 

 

MS BUCKLEY:   Most of these issues are unrelated, sir, so it will be separate 

statements.   45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Eveleigh? 

 

MS EVELEIGH:   Thank you, sir.  Kennaway Park, Orchard Trust and Hornby 5 

Consortium will all be calling a planner.  In terms of Memorial - - - 

 

SJH:   That is a common witness? 

 

MS EVELEIGH:   I am not sure of that yet, sir. 10 

 

SJH:   Well, we are seeking that where possible, so if you would take that on 

board. 

 

MS EVELEIGH:   Yes, sir.  In terms of Memorial Avenue Investments 15 

Limited the extent of evidence they call may be dependent on the 

timing of their plan change and the panel that intends to hear that.  We 

would like to avoid repetition of their evidence as much as possible and 

so it may be that some of that evidence can be heard as part of the plan 

change rather than as part of the industrial chapter.   20 

 

 But, assuming there is some delay between hearing of those two parts, I 

can indicate that we would be calling a planner, two witnesses in 

relation to office, retail and industrial provision.  Probably a witness in 

relation to a centres based approach and potentially a witness on urban 25 

design and visual effects matters. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Are those expert witnesses, any of those? 

 

MS EVELEIGH:   Yes, they would be.   30 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS EVELEIGH:   Thank you. 

 35 

SJH:   Ms Davidson? 

 

MS DAVIDSON:   Sir, Silver Fern Farms, Elmwood Storage and Lowe 

Corporation intend to call a planning expert. 

 40 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Cleary? 

 

MR CLEARY:   Sir, Goodman Property Trust is likely to call a planner. 

Stirling and Powell, they are actually further submitter 1387, are also 

likely to call a planner.   45 
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 But as we are having a combined hearing I should also record an 

appearance for Dannemora Holdings Limited as they have submission 

on the commercial chapter.  And in terms of the witness they would be 

calling, apart from the company representative, the expert witnesses 

would be - planning would be Mr Brown, traffic would be Mr Penny.  5 

A retail economist, name to be confirmed, and there is a possibility of 

sharing a witness with the Council on that matter.  Infrastructure would 

be Mr Hall and possibly urban design, which would be Mr Lundy. 

 

 Can I just mention in terms of expert conferencing, I think the 10 

infrastructure, there might be some value in infrastructure witnesses 

conferencing. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Hardy? 

 15 

MR HARDY:   For submission 819, sir, there is a planner, traffic engineer and 

an economist and I will try and avoid a company representative, I will 

set out the scene I think through a planner. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.   20 

 

MR EDWARDS:   Sir, Mr Edwards again, again noting that we are going to be 

including the commercial chapters as part of this so I am also 

representing submitter 1068, which is Tinline Properties, that is 

Barrington Mall.  1069, R and H Investments, which is the Mitre 10 in 25 

Beckenham. 

 

  [10.05 am] 

 

 The Airport Business Park, submitter 1071.  PNH (ph 0.06) 30 

Investments again which the Hornby Mitre 10 Mega submitter 1070.  

Oakwood Properties which is the Carlton Hotel.  We are actually not 

clear if they included in this or not.  We are seeking direction from the 

Council. 

 35 

 Submitter 1188 Papanui Properties which is the proposed Mitre 10 on 

the Sanitarium site in Papanui.  And submitter 1189 – sorry 1189 is the 

Papanui and 1188 is the Langdons Road property but they are both 

Papanui Properties. 

 40 

 We will be calling planning and traffic engineering expert evidence.  

That will be common for all of them. 

 

SJH:   Thank you, that is great.  Yes, Mrs Walsh. 

 45 
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MRS WALSH:   Sir, for the industrial and commercial chapters for Ngai Tahu 

Property Limited they will call a planner and Mr Miller does not know 

this yet, but we will try and get him to do both those briefs.  And we 

will be calling an economist for Ngai Tahu Property Limited but that 

will just be in relation to the commercial chapter.   5 

 

 For Te Runanga we will try and have the same planner for both the 

industrial and commercial chapters and possibly there will be the 

cultural evidence which will be closed evidence.  That will be a 

separate brief of evidence, for those reasons, and there will possibly 10 

also be a cultural witness for the commercial chapter.  

 

 For other parties which I will record an appearance for the commercial 

chapter.  For Progressive Enterprises Limited, submitter 790, they will 

be calling a planner in respect of their interests and an economist, 15 

which will be addressing intensification around centres etcetera and 

that will be Michael Copeland and he will produce a brief of evidence 

also for Ngai Tahu Property Limited in the commercial chapter. 

 

 For Orleys (ph 2.03), submitter 754 and Paul Kelly Properties, 20 

submitter 1464, we have still yet to confirm, but possibly just a planner 

for those submitters, and that is just in relation to the commercial 

chapter.   

 

 For Patrick Sloan, two submissions at Ferrymead and Washington 25 

Way, submitter 934.  Just in relation again to the commercial chapter 

they will be calling a planner and also an economist, which again will 

be Michael Copeland.   

 

 For New Millennium Limited, Edgeware Services Limited, submitter 30 

1391.  They will be calling a planner which will be Dean Chrystal and 

Dean Chrystal will also be the planning witness for Progressive 

Enterprises Limited.  Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 35 

 

MR SCHULTE:   Thank you, sir.  For Addington Raceway Limited we are 

hopeful we will be able to narrow issues with the Council. But 

assuming that a hearing is required we would be calling a company 

representative and a planning witness.  And I also represent in the 40 

commercial chapter S&B Property Trust Limited which is Halswell 

Timber Limited.  And again assuming that a hearing is required on that 

matter, a company representative and a planner in that matter also. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Dixon. 45 
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MS DIXON:  Sir, Rockgas was planning to call only a planner in relation to 

both the commercial chapter and the industrial chapter.  It is probably 

worth noting though that in light of Ms Scott’s comment that a red line 

will be circulated as a chapter and it sounded as if particular sort of 

visual amenity urban design type matters were likely to be revised in 5 

that.  We would be very keen to see that just as soon as possible.  And 

in light of that it may not be necessary for Rockgas to call any evidence 

at all. 

 

SJH:   Well that subjects everybody to changes will be made after the Council 10 

has a chance to consider all submissions and evidence and such like.  

And mediation.  We have found in natural hazards for example a great 

number of concerns - submitters have had their concerns and they are 

not now attending it.  So the same will happen here. 

 15 

MS DIXON:   Yes of course, sir.  Some clarification about when that is likely 

to be circulated would be helpful though, in order to head off even 

perhaps the filing of evidence.  Thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   That can be circulated before the filing of evidence presumably? 20 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes sir it can and with the extra week in between filing of the 

Council’s evidence and the submitters that should assist.  But if I 

suggest – I am not sure what you are anticipating, but the week before 

evidence is due? 25 

 

SJH:   Yes that would be fine.  I think the other comment to make, it was made 

previously, but it is worth repeating is that parties do not need to wait 

before they start discussing matters with the Council until evidence is 

filed and such like.  You start informal discussions, indeed you should 30 

have done so already. And a great deal of submitters have had their 

concerns answered in those informal discussions.  So don’t wait for the 

formal process.  You can instigate it yourselves directly with the 

Council which I am sure Ms Scott, the Council would welcome? 

 35 

  [10.10 am] 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes sir, absolutely.  Just in terms of that one issue I can advise 

that that decision has not yet been made so perhaps they can contact us 

today or within the next couple of days because - - - 40 

 

SJH:   Give you a week. 

 

MS SCOTT:   - - - too much assistance (INDISTINCT 0.29) 

 45 

SJH:   Give you a week all right.  Ms Roberts. 
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MS ROBERTS:   Foodstuffs were planning to call a planner and possibly 

urban design for the industrial chapter.  They have also got a list of 

experts that they will be calling including that same planner in urban 

design for the commercial chapter as well as traffic, economics, 5 

geotechnical, storm water and company representatives.  And some of 

that expert evidence, sir, will be focussed for site specific submissions 

as opposed to general provisions and may not need to be called, 

depending on how informal discussions are going with the Council.   

 10 

 And if I just record an appearance as well for Fendalton Mall Limited, 

who is part of the commercial chapter but has issues that are similar to 

the industrial and commercial chapter, and they will be calling a 

planning expert, Mr Dew (ph 1.20) 

 15 

SJH:   Yes, Mr Millar. 

 

MR MILLAR:   Thank you, sir.  For Orion New Zealand it is a discreet 

submission around corridor protection, sir, that we discussed yesterday. 

 20 

SJH:   Yes. 

 

MR MILLAR:   So we may not be presenting evidence but if we are, at that 

particular hearing it will be a planner and a company representative for 

both commercial and industrial. For Christchurch Polytechnic it is the 25 

industrial chapter only.  And that is a discreet issue around a definition 

which I am hoping we can resolve perhaps outside of the hearing 

process.  But if we are required to present evidence it will be a planner. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 30 

 

MS KUMAR:   Thank you, sir.  Melanesian Mission Trust for Tegel Foods 

Limited and Belfast Estate Limited will require a planner to present 

evidence and no further experts or witnesses will be required. 

 35 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS NICOL:   Christchurch International Airport will be calling an airport 

representative, bird expert, noise expert, economist and planner.  

Lyttelton Port Company a representative, noise expert, planner and 40 

economist.  Waterloo Park a planner. And a planner also for Gelita.   

 

 The same experts will appear for the Airport and Port Company in 

terms of the commercial hearing.  I should also enter an appearance for 

Working Style Properties Limited who in terms of the commercial 45 

aspect will be calling a company representative and a planner, and also 
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House of Merivale who will be calling a planner.  I am not sure what 

extent the planning evidence can be shared, but it is something we will 

investigate. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 5 

 

MS SEMPLE:   Thank you.  Fletcher Building have an interest only in the 

industrial chapter and they will be calling a client representative and a 

planner.  Mariner Number One have an interest in both the industrial 

and commercial chapter and they will be calling planning, economics, 10 

urban design and traffic evidence.  That evidence is likely to be shared 

with Mariner, which is a separate company, Carter Group and Maurice 

Carter Charitable Trust.   

 

 In relation to the commercial chapter also NPT will call a client 15 

representative, planning and economic evidence.  AMP will call 

planning, economic, transport and design.  And TEL, planning, 

economics and a client rep and they are likely to be the same planner 

but the other experts will not be the same. 

 20 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS MEHLHOPT:   Sir, the Regional Council has sought minor changes to 

both the commercial and the industrial chapter.  It is my understanding 

that these matters have largely been addressed or otherwise resolved.  25 

So the Regional Council does not intend to call any expert evidence on 

the chapters. 

 

SJH:  Thank you.  Mr Horgan, do you propose to call evidence in support of 

your submission? 30 

 

MR HORGAN:   Yes sir in respect of submission 807 I propose to appear 

myself and employ a planner. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 35 

 

MR HORGAN:   Thank you. 

 

  [10.15 am] 

 40 

MS……….:   Radford submission 660, likely to be calling a planner, storm 

water engineer and a lawyer. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 45 
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MS BLAIR:   BP, Mobil and Z Energy are likely to call a planner and also a 

company representative. 

 

MS JANETTE:   Further submitter 1477, Long Insulation and Fabricators 

Limited.  At this stage representation is going to be dependent on 5 

discussions with the Council, but there will be planning evidence and a 

statement from the property owner.  There may also be legal 

representation, a distributional effects expert and an environmental 

health expert. 

 10 

MR CLEASE:   In terms of the industrial chapter, Liquigas, Higgins and P & K 

Hodge will all be calling a planner.  Interested in both industrial and 

commercial.  Kiwi Income Property Trust will be calling a planner and 

a retail expert on both those chapters, and they will be the same person. 

Ian Ellis will be calling an urban design expert for the commercial 15 

chapter.  And Bunnings will be calling a planner and potentially a retail 

person on both chapters.  

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 20 

MS McLEOD:   Transpower will be calling a planner, an economist and a 

company representative. 

 

MR THOMPSON:   For Centre New Zealand, they have an interest in both 

chapters, primarily the commercial chapter, and for that we will be 25 

filing evidence from a planner, urban designer, traffic engineer and a 

company representative. 

 

MR HEDLEY:  Smith Crane & Construction, submission 802, there will be a 

statement from the Managing Director and there will be planning 30 

evidence, sir.  

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR WEAVER:   Mr Hardy will speak on the commercial chapter for us. 35 

 

MR HARDY:   Sir, if the panel has pretty much made a decision to move these 

two together, there was a matter that I was going to come back for this 

afternoon, it was Terrace Developments Limited, number 966.  That is 

the North Halswell KAC.  And ask for a competition about how it 40 

might look.  Evidence for that is urban designer, economist, planner 

and traffic engineer.  We will be attempting our own mediation to so if 

we can resolve issues.  I might be excused, sir, having said that now, I 

will not get someone else to come this afternoon, when I could not 

come.  I accept that if they are to go together we will hear in due 45 

course.  I understand a formal application is to be made.  
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Disappointment that the Crown and the City could not have advised all 

of the parties and the secretariat in time so that all people might have 

been here to hear that, but so be it, we have to live with that. 

 

SJH:   We might not have fitted them all, Mr Hardy, if we had combined the 5 

two hearings.  But subject to that decision, unless anybody here is 

going to oppose that at commercial this afternoon, because we have to 

give them the rights, provided they have advised that their witnesses on 

both the commercial and industrial, they may be excused this 

afternoon.  We do not expect people to turn up unnecessarily. 10 

 

MR HARDY:   Thanks, that is appreciated.  

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 15 

MR WEAVER:   Sir, in relation to Calder Steward submissions, we will be 

calling a planner, a traffic engineer, a landscape architect and a 

spokesman from the company and that will cover both our commercial 

and industrial submissions.  

 20 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

 We will just go back to mediation and expert conferencing, because we 

indicated that there could be a use in expert conferencing, the Panel is 

quite satisfied there would be in certain areas, we take on board what 25 

has been said about mediation, but we think there is room and we will 

make arrangements for expert conferencing dealing with infrastructure.  

 

  [10.20 am] 

 30 

 The economists, which will include the retail experts, traffic design, 

transport and urban design, which will include landscape architects.  

The other matters will be mediated in the way that we have already 

indicated.  

 35 

 So we can now come to - we have dealt with shared witnesses, experts 

consolidation and such like.  We feel, because of the time pressures, 

that given all evidence is read in advance, that those speaking to their 

evidence need to do it in 10 minutes as succinctly as possible.  That 

cross-examination will be 10 minutes.  But there will leave to all 40 

parties, and they should feel to do so, if they need more time to seek an 

application.  So you are going to have to apply to cross examination 

under the Order in Council anyway.  You should, if you need extra 

time, particularly of experts, indicate in that document.  

 45 
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 So we can just confirm that the hearing will commence on 11 May. 

Council’s evidence by 13 April.  The submitter’s evidence by 24 April.  

Rebuttal evidence from the Council and any other relevant submitters 

by 1 May.  Applications for leave to cross examine should be filed on 

or before 1 May.  And to confirm, we will put in place a programme for 5 

mediation following the filing of the Council’s evidence and a 

programme of expert conferencing, which may precede the evidence, if 

it is thought appropriate, in the areas I have already indicated. 

 

 Now the red line document by the Council, I think, how about 6 April, 10 

that is a week before your … 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, that is Easter Monday.  

 

SJH:   Oh yes.  That is what happens when you rely on people on your right, 15 

you see.  How about 8 April? 

 

MS SCOTT:   8 April would be fantastic, thank you, sir.  Could I just add, 

please, I have just been advised there is one more witness that the 

Council will be calling and that is an acoustic expert, and that evidence 20 

will be focused on the Port. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  The other thing is, it would also be useful to have an issues 

list in the same way as we have done with residential, Ms Scott, and 

within a similar timeframe to that, which I think was a week. 25 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, absolutely, sir. 

 

SJH:   Which can be circulated to all parties. 

 30 

MS SCOTT:   So, perhaps by next Friday? 

 

SJH:   Sorry? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Next Friday, sir. 35 

 

SJH:   Friday of next week is fine. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you. 

 40 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Ms Scott, just on the acoustics expert, would that expert 

appropriately take part in witness conferencing?  And, if so, which 

group?  Would it be the infrastructure group? 
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MS SCOTT:   Yes, possibly.  They potentially speak directly with the Court’s 

expert as well.  But, yes, in terms of the facilitated caucusing, 

infrastructure. 

 

SJH:   So, part of infrastructure? 5 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes.  

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Just to remind parties, when filing documents, include your 

name and also your submitter number.  Mr Ball is here if there is 10 

anyone who needs assistance, but I think everyone is pretty well got 

themselves sorted at this particular hearing.  Are there any matters 

anybody else wishes to raise from the Panel’s perspective? 

 

 Just a reminder that we will be issuing a minute shortening the 15 

timeframes in the residential and subdivision chapters as well, for the 

same reasons.  Regrettably, but there we are.  So are there any matters 

anybody has?  Ms Scott. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Sorry, sir, just legal submissions. 20 

 

SJH:   Oh, I am sorry, just the standard submission, which is very brief 

openings which can be filed in advance, if you are able to do so, we are 

happy to take them at the hearing.  And once we have got through the 

matter, we will make directions as to the filing of closing submissions, 25 

which is where we expect the grunty stuff.  Okay. 

 

  [10.25 am] 

 

 Judge Hassan has just mentioned with this tracked document producing 30 

it will be updated from time to time, ending up probably its last version 

in your rebuttal evidence and the tracking and such like should be made 

very clear within that document so we can follow the progress of it. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir.  I take it you are meaning in colours. 35 

 

SJH:   In colours, yes.  Mrs Walsh, you have something? 

 

MRS WALSH:   Sir, just another suggestion similar to the suggestion I made 

on Monday in relation to the residential chapter with expert caucusing 40 

just to ensure that it is used as efficiently as possible if the secretariat 

could produce a fairly detailed timetable so, for example in relating to 

the economic experts, we have economists and other parties would be 

the same, they only have interest in relation to the commercial 

provision. So whether they need to be available for the industrial 45 

provision is probably - - - 
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SJH:   Yes, it also highlights the need that the expert conferencing needs to 

take place before the mediation as well. 

 

MRS WALSH:   Indeed. 5 

 

SJH:   But, no we will take that on board. 

 

MRS WALSH:  Thank you, sir. 

 10 

SJH:   We have already mentioned that to the secretariat.   

 

(Discussion) 

 

 I think it would be useful for the Council and the Crown to assist by 15 

suggesting, but it needs to be shared with all parties, a suggested 

timetable to the secretariat and the timetable should also carve up the 

different blocks of work.  I think it would be helpful if you work with 

the secretariat to produce that, but that can be made available to all 

parties and it won’t be finalised until they have had the chance to 20 

respond. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Both for mediation and - - - 

 

SJH:   And the expert conferencing. 25 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes sir, we can do that. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Roberts. 

 30 

MS ROBERTS:   Sir, I was just going to clarify that timetable that is being set 

out is going to apply to the commercial as well so I can advise clients 

as such. 

 

SJH:   Well subject to what we hear this afternoon.  You can assume that that 35 

will be so.  And if you have made submissions on commercial so you 

don’t need to come and repeat them this afternoon, you can be excused. 

 

MS ROBERTS:   Thank you, sir. 

 40 

SJH:   Anybody else got anything to raise?  All right, well thank you all for 

your cooperation.  There is – sorry. 

 

MS BLAIR:   I do apologise I just wanted to make it clear that I was entering 

an appearance on the commercial and the industrial chapter. 45 
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SJH:   You were today? 

 

MS BLAIR:   Yes, thank you. 

 

SJH:   Yes, well you may be excused this afternoon. 5 

 

MS BLAIR:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Thank you and thank you everybody for your cooperation.  We will 

adjourn until this afternoon. 10 

 

MATTER ADJOURNED AT 10.27 AM ACCORDINGLY 


